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NATIONAL PLYWOOD INDUSTRIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors ha;}e pleasure in presenting their 41* Annual Report together with the Audited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2016 and Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on that

date.

FINANCIAL RESULTS | (Rs. in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As on As on
| 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Revenue from operations F5277.15 I 3878.54
Other Income 176.99 4372.37
Profit /(Loss) before Interest and Depreciation | 246.04 13102.22
Profit /(Loss) before Tax 196.02 3064.47
Provision for Tax i |
Profit /(Loss)after Tax | 196.02 3064.47
mProposed Dividend on Equity Shares
Balance Brought-forward from Balance —Sheet | (6228.25) (9292.72)
Balance carried forward to Balance-Sheet (6032.23) (6228.25)

STATE OF COMPANY'’S AFFAIRS

During the year under review, the Company has achieved a gross turnover of Rs. 5277.15 Lakhs as
against Rs. 3878.54 Lakhs marking an increase of 36.06 % from the preceding year. The Company is
taking necessary steps to further increase the turnover and margins. The Margherita Unit of the
Company has contributed to the increase in the turnover of the year. The performance of the
company would have been much better if M/s SASF had cleared the no-dues certificate as per the
terms of the Negotiated Settlement and directions of the Hon’ble BIFR which would have enabled
your company to access the required working capital in time to optimally utilize the resources and
production capacities.

The No Dues Certificate of three Banks namely State Bank of India (SBI), State Bank of Mysore
(SBM) and Standard Chartered Bank (SCB) have been received by the Company respectively on
02.01.2014, 08.01.2014 and 16.01.2014. The No Dues Certificate from SASF is still awaited. The
Company has filed a petition in the Kolkata High Court which is pending for judgement.

We are now awaiting release of charge on the Company’s assets alongwith the title deeds
subsequent to which the Company will be in a position to arrange additional working capital
required to increase the sales turnover of the Company.

The Company’s Rehabilitation Scheme had been submitted to the Operating Agency (IDBI) and the
Hon’ble BIFR but there has been no hearing for our Company after 13.08.2014. The Scheme with
cut off date 31.03.2013 is proposed to be revised to 31.03.2015 subject to approval of Hon’ble BIFR

and the revised scheme will be submitted shortly to the Operating Agency for onward submission
to the Hon’ble BIFR.

CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

No Change in the nature of business of the Company done during the year.



DIVIDEND

Due to nominal profit available for appropriation, your Directors are unable to recommend any
dividend for the year under review.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on 31* March 2016 was Rs. 5.85 Crores. During the year under
review, the Company has neither issued any shares or any convertible instruments, nor has bought

back any of its securities.
DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public during the year and as such, there is no
outstanding deposit in terms of Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In terms of Section135 and Schedule — VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable for the Company as the Company is a sick Company and
registered with BIFR. The Company continue to remain focussed on improving the quality of life
and engaging communities through health, education, sports and infrastructure development.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

As required under Regulation 34(2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred as “SEBI
Regulations”}, the Management Discussion and Analysis Report is attached herewith as “Annexure-
1”.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, , Sri Vijay Kumar Periwal, Director
DIN No.: (00705848) retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

At the 41°" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 29" September, 2016, the
Company seeks members approval for appointment of Sri Nani Gopal Paul, as a Whole-time
Director under the Companies Act, 2013 for a period of 3 years effective from 30" May, 2016.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors have given the declaration that they meet the criteria of independence
as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Regulations.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year under review, five Board Meetings were convened and held. The Details of which
are given in the Corporate Governance Report. The provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
Regulations were adhered to while considering the time gap between two meetings.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEB! Regulations, the Board has
carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own performance, its committees and
individual directors on the basis of agreed norms of evaluation.
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The manner in which the evaluation has been carried out is explained in the Corporate Governance
Report.

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

The informations required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 214 in respect of managerial
personnel of the Company forms a part of the Corporate Governance Report.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company has no Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures & Associate Companies.
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTY

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year under review were at
arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant
related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel or other désignated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large. Accordingly, there are no transaction to be reported in Form AOC-2.

All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and also the Board for
approval.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

In order to enhance that the activities of the Company and its employees are conducted in a fair
and transparent manner by adoption of highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity
and ethical behavior, the Company has adopted vigil mechanism policy.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEE OR INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given any guarantees or given new loans or made any new investments
during the year under review.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The composition and terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been furnished in the
Corporate Governance Report forming a part of this Report. There has been no instance where the
Board has not accepted the recommendations of the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The composition and terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee have
been furnished in the Corporate Governance Report forming a part of this Report.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The composition and terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee have been
furnished in the Corporate Governance Report forming a part of this Report.



RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk is inherent in all business activities. Every employee of the Company in one way or the other,
and in varying degrees manages risk. It is well accepted that the adoption of a strategic and formal
approach to risk management will improve decision-making, enhance outputs and fix

accountability.

The Company has formulated a policy on risk management which aims not to eliminate risk, rather
to manage the risks involved in most business activities, to maximize opportunities and to minimize
adversity. Effective risk management requires:

A strategic focus and clear planning,

- Forward thinking and active approaches to management,
Balance between the cost of managing risk and the anticipated benetfits, and
Contingency planning in the event of critical threats and realize Company’s mission.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the nature of its
business and the size and complexity of its operations.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)( c) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to
Director’s Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

a) That in the preparation of the accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2016, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material

departures, if any;

b) That the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31* March, 2016 and of the profit/loss of the
Company for the year on that date;

c) That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) That the Directors have prepared the accounts for th3e year ended 31* March, 2016 on a
‘going concern’ basis;

e) That the Directors have laid down internal financial controls in the Company that are adequate
and were operating effectively;

f) That the Directors incorporated proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and these are adequate and are operating effectively.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has in place the SEBI guidelines pertaining to Corporate Governance.

The Corporate Governance Report giving the details as required under SEB| Regulations is given
separately.




The Corporate Governance Certificate for the year ended on 31% March, 2016 issued by M/s.
Jhunjhunwala & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditor of the Company, is also attached

herewith as “Annexure-3".

Shri Piyush Periwal, the Managing Director has given his certificate under SEB! Regulations
regarding compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the year ended 31% March,
2016, which is attached herewith. Certificate pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI { Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is attached herewith as “Annexure-

4" ..
AUDITORS

STATUTORY AUDITOR
In terms of the provision of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 M/s. Jhunjhunwala & Co.,

Chartered Accountants, Kolkata (Firm Registration No. 302169E), were re-appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of four years effective from the conclusion of
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 29" September, 2015 subject to ratification by
the members at every Annual General Meeting. They have confirmed their eligibility to the effect
that their re-appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits under the Act and that

they are not disqualified for re-appointment.

The notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do
not call for any further comments. The Auditors’ Report does not contain qualification, reservation

or adverse remark.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the Provision of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule-9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company
has re-appointed M/S. Maheshwari R & Associates, (Membership No. 5126) Company Secretaries in
Practice, to undertake the secretarial audit of the Company. Secretarial Audit Report for the year
2015-16 given by M/S. Maheshwari R & Associates in the prescribed Form MR-3 is annexed to this
Report as “Annexure-6”. The Secretarial Audit Report for the year under review does not contain
any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by the secretarial auditor.

INVESTOR EDUCATION & PROTECTION FUND

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable for the Company as
there was no dividend declared and paid in the last financial year.

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed at Bombay Stock Exchange Limited & Calcutta Stock
Exchange Limited. Annual Listing Fees for the Financial Year 2016-17 to the Exchanges where the
Company’s shares are listed remain outstanding. The Company has written to the Exchanges for
waiver of interest and penalties and reply is awaited from the respective Exchanges.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OuTGO

The information pertaining to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo as required under Section 134(3){(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished in as “Annexure-7" attached

herewith.

L.
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of annual return as provided under sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Rule-12 of the Companies (Management and Administration} Rules, 2014 is
furnished in Form MGT-9 and enclosed herewith as “Annexure-8".

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Your Company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of
section 2(32) and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year and as such, no amount of
principal or interest on deposit was outstanding as of the balance sheet date.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE
COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

No material change and commitment affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred
between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of the

Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

During the year under review, there was no significant and material orders passed by the regulators
or courts or tribunals, which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its
operations in future.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL ) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place a policy for Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment
at Workplace in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under. During the year
under review, the Company had not received any complaint.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors’ record their sincere appreciation for the support and co-operation received from
the financial institutions, banks, dealers, suppliers, customers, shareholders, various government
authorities and other business associates of the Company. Your Directors also place on record their
appreciation for the dedication and commitment of all employees in achieving and sustaining
excellence in all areas of the business.

For and on behalf of the Board

( P. PERIWAL)
Kolkata Vice-Chairman & Managing Director
Date : 30" May, 2016 DIN: 00698796




Annexure-1

- MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

OVERVIEW

National Plywood Industries Limited is a pioneer in the Indian Plywood industry and one of the first
few manufacturers to venture into producing a wide range of high quality plywood products. Its
nlywood products are sold under the NATIONAL brand and has a strong predominance in the market
because of its quality, steady marketing policies and constant upgradation through research ana

development.

OUTLOOK

The Economic slowdown had a significant bearing on the functioning and profitability trading
businesses in the medium term. But it has been estimated that in the long run there are vast
opportunities for trading entities. Hence, the Company is expecting to improve its performance and
profitability in years to come.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The well disciplined workforce which has served the Company lies at the very foundation of the
Company’s major achievements and shall well continue for the years to come. The Company
recognises the importance of Human Resource as a key asset instrumental in its growth. The
Company continues to give priority to its human assets. The Company is continuously working to
create and nurture an atmosphere which is highly motivated and result oriented. Decisions on
recruitment, career development, training, promotion, rewards, and other employment related issues
are made solely on the ground of individual ability, achievement, expertise and conduct and these
principles are operated on a non-discriminatory basis.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate system of internal control to safeguard and protect from loss,
unauthorized use or disposition of its assets. All the transactions are properly authorized, recorded
and reported to the Management. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards
for properly maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial statements. The Audit
Committee of the Company also periodically reviews internal controls and takes remedial measures

whenever necessary.

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS

Opportunities:

Some of the key opportunities based on the recent scenario of the economy are as follows:
e Government initiatives towards building Smart cities across India.

e Government initiative for reviving the infrastructure & Housing Industry by way of increasing
the government funding in infrastructure products.

* |Increase in demand for premium housing and commercial space.
e [ncreasing urbanization

e Tax benefits on housing loans



Your Company is well positioned to take advantage of the opportunities in the market in the
upcoming years.

Threats
e Increase in cost of Timber and related items globally
* [ncrease in labour costs

e Stringent regulatory norms on protection of environment

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company is exposed to competition from unorganized sectors, fluctuating interest rates,
unpredictable economy, volatile business environment, credit risk, labour factors are the various
identifiable risks along with uncontrollable external factors. The Company manages these risks by
maintaining a conservative financial profile, and by following prudent business and risk management
practices.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

i

The Financial Performance of the Company for the year under review is discussed in detail in the
Directors Report, for and on behalf of board of directors.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certain statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis, describing the Company’s
objectives, outlook and expectations, may constitute “forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those
expressed or implied. Several factors make a significant difference to the Company’s operations,
including climatic conditions, economic scenario affecting demand and supply, Government
regulations, taxation, natural calamity and such other factors over which the Company does not have
any direct control.

By Order of the Board

(P.PERIWAL)
Place : Kolkata Vice-Chairman & Managing Director
Date: 30th July, 2015. DIN: 00698796




Annexure-2

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY'’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Good Governance is an integral part of the Company’s business practices based on the philosophy of
Trusteeship, i.e. transparency, adequate disclosure, fairness to all and Independent monitoring and
supervision. The strong internal control system and procedures, risk assessment and mitigation procedures
and code of conduct for observance by the Company’s directors and employees are conducive in achieving
good Corporate Governance practices in the Company. The Board has adopted a principal of good and

ethical Corporate Governance in line with the requirement of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

b

As at 31° March, 2016 the Company’s Board consists of Seven (7) number of Directors. Sri Vijay
Kumar Periwal shall retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and has offered himself for re-

appointment.

Sri Piyush Periwal Vice-Chairman& Managing Director

Sri Vijay Kumar Periwal Promoter Director

Sri Abhijit Sarkar Independent & Non-Executive Director

Sri Nani Gopal Paul Whole-time Director & Executive Director
Miss Malvika Periwal Woman Director & Non-Executive Director
Sri Vinod Kumar Sharma Independent & Non-Executive Director

Sri Brij Gopal Jaju Independent & Non-Executive Director

The Executive Directors are eminent and experienced persons in their respective fields of industry, finance
and law.

Directorship held by Directors of National Plywood Industries Limited:

Name of Director | Category No. of No. of other No. of Outside
Shares held | Directorship Committees.
in the Public | Private | Member | Chairman
e | | company | | |
Sri P. Periwal Promoter, 322575 1 - 2 1
Executive
Director &
| Chairman _ | |
Sri V. K. Periwal Promoter 250925 - - - | -
Sri N. G. Paul Executive & | 200 | 0 | 1 - | -
Whole-time
| Director | |
SriV. K. Sharma Independent 200 0 - - -
Director. | | '
Miss Malvika Women & 17250 0 - - -
Periwal Non-Executive
Director, _ | | *
Sri Abhijit Sarkar | Independent 200 0
o | Director. |
' Sri B. G. Jaju ndependent 200 0
Director 1|
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' Name of Director Number of Board | No. of Sitting Fees paid | Attendance at
' Meeting which meetings during the year the last AGM
director was attended

~ None of the Directors of the Board is a member of more than 10 (Ten) Committees and Chairman of more

than 5 (Five) Committees as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, across all Companies in which he is a Director.

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE OF THE DIRECTORS

The Company’s Board of Directors play a primary role in ensuring good governance and functioning of the
Company. All the required information is placed before the Board. The Board reviews from time to time
compliance reports of all the laws applicable to the Company. The members of the Board have complete
freedom to express their opinion and decisions are taken after detailed discussion.

During the year ended on 31° March, 2016, the Board of Directors had 5 (Five) meetings which were held
as under —

May 27/05/2015
June 29/06/2015
July 30/07/2015
October 30/10/2015
January 27/01/2016

Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings for the Financial Year 2015-16 and details of sitting fees paid to
the Directors for the period under review are as follows :

entitled to attend

—— e — 1

Sri P. Periwal 5 5 Nil Yes
Sri V.K. Periwal | 5 0 Nil No |
Sri N.G.Paul 5 5 | Nil Yes
Sri V.K. Sharma 5 E Rs. 7500/- | Yes
Miss Malvika Periwal 5 | 2 Rs. 7500/- No
Sri Abhijit Sarkar | 5 E | Rs. 7500/- | No
. Sri Brij Gopal Jaju E 5 Rs. 7500/- No

INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE BOARD

As required under the Regulation 17(7) read with Part-A of Schedule-Il of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 all the informations were placed before the Board.

ORDERLY SUCCESSION TO BOARD AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Board of the Company has satisfied itself that plans are in place for orderly succession for
appointments to the Board and to Senior Management.

BOARD AGENDA

The Board meeting are scheduled well in time and Board members are given a notice of more than 21days
before the meeting date except in case of emergent meeting. The Board members are provided with well

structured and comprehensive agenda papers.
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with the definitions of independence as per Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and according to the Provisions
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of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company issues a formal letter of appointment to
independent directors in the manner as provided in the Companies Act, 2013.

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS AND ATTENDANCE RECORD
Independent Directors to meet at least once in a year to deal with matters listed out in SEBI Regulations,

2015, which inter-alia includes, reviewing the performance of non-independent directors, chairman and
the Board as a whole and assess quality and quantity of flow of information to perform the duties by the

Board of Directors.

Attendance Record of Meetings of Independent Directors

r_r\.lame of the Director Number of Meetings held Number of Meetings attended
' Sri V.K.Sharma 1 1
SriB.G. Jaju 1 1

Sri Abhijit Sarkar 1 1

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN THE COMPANY

Sometime, the Company do enter into contracts with companies in which some of the Directors of the
Company are interested as director or member. However, these contracts are in the ordinary course of the
Company’s business without giving any specific weightage to them. Directors regularly make full disclosures
to the Board of Directors regarding the nature of their interest in the companies in which they are directors
or members. Full particulars of contracts entered with companies in which directors are directly or
indirectly concerned or interested are entered in the Registrar of Contracts maintained under Section 189
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same is placed in every Board Meeting for the noting of the Directors.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In compliance with provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015, the Board through its Nomination and Remuneration Committee has devised a Policy on Board
Diversity. The objective of the Policy is to ensure that the Board is comprised of adequate number of
members with diverse experience and skills, so that it serves best the governance and strategic needs of

the Company.

't may be noted that, the Board composition as at present broadly meets with the above objective.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has put in place a Whistle Blower Policy to provide an open and transparent working
environment and to promote responsible and secure whistle blowing system for directors and employees

of the Company to raise concern.

The Whistle Blower Policy provides a mechanism for the director/employee to report violations, without
fear of victimization of any unethical behavior, suspected or actual fraud, violation of the Code of Conduct
etc. which are detrimental to the organisation’s interest. The mechanism protects whistle blower from any
kind of discrimination, harassment, victimization or any other unfair employment practice.

The directors in all cases and employees in appropriate or exceptional cases will have direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. The said Policy is placed on the Company’s website

www.nationalplywood.net.




'COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE

a) Composition of the Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three Non-Executive Directors, all of whom are Independent
Directors and one Executive Director. The names of the members of the Committee are Sri Vinod
Kumar Sharma (Chairman of the Committee), Sri Piyush Periwal, Sri Brij Gopal Jaju and Sri Abhijit
Sarkar. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

b) Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the Committee as specified in Regulation 18 read with part C of Schedule I

of the SEBI Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 are as follows:
Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;
Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company.

- Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory

auditors;
- Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

before submission to the Board for approvai;
- Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the

Board for approval;
- Reviewing and monitoring the auditors’ independence and performance, and effectiveness of

audit process;
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
Reviewing with the Management, performance of statutory auditors, adequacy of the internal

control systems;
- Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of

audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;
- To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;
- Approval of appointment of the Chief Financial Officer and other Key Managerial Personnel after

assessing the qualifications, experience and background etc. of the candidate;
- Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee.

¢) Audit Committee Meetings held during the year ended 31* March 2016

(i) During the year under review, four Audit Committee Meetings were held on 27" May, 2015, 30"
July, 2015, 30" October, 2015 and 27" January, 2016.

d) Attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings

' Name of Directors No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings attended
Sri Vinod Kumar Sharma 4 4
Mgi'_i_Piyush Periwal 4 | 4
Sri rij Gopal Jaju 4 4
Sri Abhijit Sarkar | 4 4 1

B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

a) Composition of the Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of three Non-Executive Directors, all of whom
are Independent Directors. The names of the members of the Committee are Dri Vinod Kumar Sharma

(Chairman of the Committee), Sri Brij Gopal Jaju and Sri Abhijit Sarkar.
12
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b) Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the Committee as specified in Regulation 19 read with part D of Schedule Il of the
SEBI Regulations are as fellows:

_ Formulation of the criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to the remuneration of the

Director;

. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of the independent directors and the Board of Directors;
- Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;

- Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board of Directors

their appointment and removal,

. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis
of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.

c) Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meeting held during the year ended 31° March 2016
During the year under review, one Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting was held on 7%

July, 2015.

d) Attendance at the Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meeting

Name of Directors No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings attended
Sri Vinod Kumar Sharma 1 1
Sri Brij Gopal Jaju 1 1

- Sri Abhijit Sarkar 1 1

e) Performance Evaluation criteria for Independent Directors

The following are the evaluation criteria for the Performance evaluation of the independent
directors.

- Compliance with articles of Association, Companies Act & other laws

- Compliance with ethical standards & code of conduct of Company

- Assistance in implementing corporate governance practices

- Rendering independent, unbiased opinion

- Attendance & presence in meetings of Board & committees

- Attendance & presence in general meetings

- Disclosure of independence, if exists

- Review of integrity of financial information & risk management
- Safeguard of stakeholders’ interests

- Updation of skills and knowledge

- Raising of concerns to the Board
- Safeguarding interest of whistle blowers under vigil mechanism

- Reporting of frauds, violation etc.
- Safeguard of confidential information

f) Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per requirement of Regulation 17(10) of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) regulations, 2015, the Board has adopted the
criteria for evaluation of its own performance, its committees and individual directors and carried out

the required annual evaluation.
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In respect of each of the evaluation factors, various aspects covering general parameters in respect of
all the directors and its committees have been considered and set out in the Performance Evaluation

Policy in accordance with their respective functions and duties.

Self-appraisal by the directors, based on their delegated specific responsibilities has also been carried
out.

Further the independent directors have evaluated the performance of Executive Chairman, Non-
Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole as per requirement of Regulation 25 (3) &
(4) of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee had also evaluated performance of each of the Directors
based on the aforesaid evaluation factors.

C. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

a) Composition of the Committee

i .

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists of Sri Vinod Kumar Sharma, Non-Executive Director and
Chairman of the Committee, Sri Abhijit Sarkar, Non-Executive Independent Director and Sri Piyush Periwal,
Managing Director. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

b) Terms of Reference
The Committee performs amongst others the role/functions as are set out in SEBI Regulations and includes:

To consider, review and redress grievances of shareholders and other security holders of the

Company;
- to consider and resolve the grievances of the Shareholders/Investor’s like transfer of shares, non

receipt of balance sheet, non receipt of declared dividend;
- to deal with all aspects relating to issue and allotment of shares and/or other securities of the

Company;
- to consider and approve subdivision, consolidation, transfer and issue of duplicate share

certificates;
- to delegate any of the powers mentioned above to the company executives;
- authority to take a decision in any other matter in relation to the above functions/powers; and
- to do such other acts, deeds and things as may be directed by the Board and required to comply

with the applicable laws.
c) Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings held during the year ended 31* March 2016

During the year under review, two Stakeholder Relationship Committee Meetings were held on 3"
October, 2015 and 11" February, 2016. |

c) Attendance at the Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings

Name of Directors No. of Meetings held | No. of Meetings attended
Sri Vinod Kumar Sharma 2 | 2
Sri Abhijit Sarkar | 2 |2
Sri Pivush Periwal 2 2

e) Compliance Officer

Miss Shruti Bothra, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company.
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f) Shareholders’ Complaints

During the year ended 31" March, 2016, the Company has not received any complaints from its
shareholders. No complaints were pending at the beginning and at the closing of the year.

REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS

The Company has no stock option plans for the directors and hence, it does not form a part of the
remuneration package payable to any executive and/or non-executive director. During the year under
review, none of the directors was paid any performance-linked incentive.

The Company has paid to the Directors Rs. 1,500/- as sitting fees for attending each meeting of the Board
and Rs. 1,500/- for attending each meeting of the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION TO THE DIRECTORS / KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL(KMP):

SL. NO. Name of Director Designation Remuneration in
2015-16
01 R Piyush Periwal | Vice-Chairman & Managing Rs.9.00 Lacs p.a.
Director

02 | SriN.G. Paul | Whole-time Director | Rs.3.12 Lacs p.a.
03 Sri V.K. Sharma | Independent Director |

04 Sri V.K.Periwal | Director | Meeting Fees
05 | Miss Malvika Periwal r Woman Director L Meeting Fees
06 Sri Abhijit Sarkar | Independent Director | Meeting Fees
07 Sri B.G. Jaju Independent Director Meeting Fees

In 2015-16, the Company did not advance any loans to nay of the non-executive directors and/or Managing
Director. Details of remuneration paid/payable to directors during 2015-16 are provided in an annexure to

the Directors report in Form MGT-9.
There were no pecuniary transactions with any non-executive director of the Company.

REGISTER OF CONTRACTS

The register of contracts is maintained by the Company under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
register is signed by all the directors present at the respective Board meetings.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Details of the last three Annual General Meetings are as under:

Financial Year | Date Time " | Location :Registered Office of the Company.

2012-13 27/09/2013 | 12.30 P.M. | Makum Pathar, Margherita, Tinsukia, Assam |

2013-14 | 29/09/2014 | 3.00 P.M. | Makum Pathar, Margherita, Tinsukia, Assam

2014-15 29/09/2015 | 2.30 P.M. | Makum Pathar, Margherita, Tinsukia, Assam
Notes:

(i) No special resolution was passed through postal ballot during the year 2015-16.
(1) No special resolution is proposed to be put through postal ballot in the ensuing Annual General

Meeting.
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DISCLOSURES

a) There is no materially significant Related Party Transaction entered into by the Company that may
have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

b) There were no instances of non-compliance nor have any penalties or strictures been imposed by
Stock Exchange or SEBI or any other statutory authority during the last three years on any matter
related to the capital markets.

C) The Company has followed the applicable guidelines of Accounting Standards as specified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

d) The Company has adopted Vigil Mechanism/Whistle blower policy. No personnel were denied
access to the Audit Committee.

e) The Company does not have any subsidiary.

f) The Company has cc;'mplied with corporate governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to
27 and clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a) Quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results of the Company are communicated to the Stock
Exchanges immediately after they are approved by the Board.
b) No presentations were made to institutional investors or analysts.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

. Annual General Meeting

Date and Time . 29" SEPTEMBER, 2016 at 2.30 P.M.
Venue : Makum Pathar, Margherita, Tinsukia, Assam.

H. Financial Calendar for the year 2016-17 :

Results for the First Quarter : Second week of August
Results for the Second Quarter : Second week of November
Results for the Third Quarter : Second week of February
Annual Audited Results : Last week of May
1. Book Closure Date : 23" September,2016 to 29" September,2016 (both days
inclusive)
IV. Dividend Payment Date : Not Applicable
V. Listing on Stock Exchanges : Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.

Corporate Relationship Department
Rotunda Building, 1% Floor

New Trade Ring, P.J. Towers

Dalal Street, Mumbai — 400 001

V1. Scrip Code : 516062
VILISIN allotted to Equity Shares : INE4A97C01016
VIIl. Corporate ldentity Number (CIN) : L20211AS1973PLCO01856

VIIi. Share Transfer System
M/s. Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited are the Share Transfer Agents/Registrars (both for
physical as well as demat segments) of the Company. The Board of Directors of the Company has
authorized Sri Suresh Kumar Jain, Senior Executive and Miss Shruti Bothra, Compliance Officer and
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Company Secretary of the Company to approve all valid share transfer requests on regular basis and
accordingly all valid transfers are effected within a fortnight. Details of approved share transfers are

submitted to the Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

IX. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31 March, 2016

T

No. of Equity No. of % of No. of Shares % of

Shares Held Shareholders | Shareholders held | Shareholders
! 5033 90.75 1052099 17.9731

Upto 500 _ |

501 to 1000 307 5.53 261761 4.4631

1001 to 2000 | 110 1.98 167950 1 2.9169

2001 to 3000° | 28 0.5049 170100 [ 1.1975

3001 to 4000 5 0.0902 17400 | 0.2972

4001 to 5000 13 0.2344 61900 1 1.0574

} ! 4 !

5001 to 10,000 | 13 0.2344 82000 1.4008

10001 and | 37 | 0.6671 ' 4141240 70.6938

ébqve

TOTAL 5546 100.00 5853750 100.00

Xl.Dematerialisation of shares

Xll. Outstanding GDR/ADR/Warrants

XIll. PLANT LOCATIONS

XIV. Address for Correspondence

The Company’s shares are available for Dematerialisation and
liquidity wityh NSDL. The ISIN allotted to the Company’s
Equity Shares is INE497C01016. As on 31% March, 2016,
69.80% of the Share Capital has been dematerialized.

: Not Applicable

. 1. At Hosur: Thally Road, Kalukondapally, Tamilnadu

2. At Margherita:
Tinsukia, Assam.

Makum Pathar, Margherita, Dist.:

: Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt.Ltd.

6 Mangoe Lane, 2" Floor, Kolkata- 700001.
Phone: (033) 2243-5809/5029

Fax :(033)2248-4787

E-mail : mdpldc@yahoo.com

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accounting treatment(s) in preparation of financial statements followed by the Company
is/are the same as prescribed in the Accounting Standards.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct applicable to all Board members and senior management
personnel for avoidance of conflicts of interest between each of the above individuals and the Company.

All the Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of
Conduct as at the end of each Financial Year. The required declarations in respect of the financial year
2015-16 have been received from all Board members and senior management personnel.
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CODE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER-TRADING PRACTICES

In compliance with the SEBI Regulations, on prevention of insider trading, the Company has instituted a
comprehensive code of conduct for its management and staff. The code lays down guidelines, which
advises them on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made, while dealing with shares of

Company, and cautioning them of the consequences of violations.

For and on behalf of the Board

PIYUSH PERIWAL

Vice-Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00698796

Registered Office :
Makum Pathar — 786187

Margherita
Dist: Tinsukia {Assam)

Date: 30" May, 2016
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Annexure- 3

Certificate on Corporate Governance to
The Members of National Plywood Industries Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by NATIONAL
PLYWOOD INDUSTRIES LIMITED for the year ended 31st March, 2016 as stipulated in Chapter
IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to the
Listing Agreement of the said Company with the Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof,
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of
the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, and the representations made by the Directors and the management, we certify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in the
provisions as specified in Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the said Company with stock
exchanges.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For M/S JHUNJHUNWALA & CO.
Chartered Accoutants
Firm Registration No.302169E.

R.K. Jhunjhunwala

Place: Kolkata Proprietor
Date: 30" May, 2016. ( Membership No. 006604)
Annexure-4

Declaration Regarding Compliance By Board Members And Senior Management
Personnel With The Company’s Code of Conduct

This is to confirm that the Board has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Directors and Senior
Management of the Company .

| confirm that the Company has received from the Senior Management team of the Company and
the Members of the Board a declaration of compliance with the Code of Conduct, as applicable
to them, during the financial year ended 31° March, 2016.

PIYUSH PERIWAL
Place:Kolkata Vice-Chairman & Managing Director
Date: 30" May, 2016 DIN: 00698796



Annexure-5

Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, | hereby certify that :

a) | have reviewed the Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statements for the year ended
31* March, 2016 and that to the best of our Knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and
are in compliance with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and
regulations.

b) | hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Executive Committee

have confirmed compliance with the Code of Business Conduct as adopted by the Company.

c) 1 am responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and
that | have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining
to financial reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which |
am aware and the steps | have taken or proposed to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d) | have indicated, based in my most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors
and the the Audit Comiittee :

(i) Significant Changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) Significant Changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same
has been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

(iii) Instances of significant fraud of which | have become aware and the involvement
therein, if any, of the management or an employee having significant role in the
Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

For National Plywood Industries Limited

PIYUSH PERIWAL
Place:Kolkata Vice-Chairman & Managing Director
Date: 30" May, 2016 DIN: 00698796



Annexure-7

Information under Section 134(3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule - 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of Directors’ Report.

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
a) Energy Conservation measures taken: Energy conservation, wherever possible, have

already been implemented and there are no major areas where further energy
conservation measures can be taken. However, efforts to conserve and optimize the
use of energy through improved operational methods and other means will continue.

Disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy

For Hosur Unit;

A. Power and Fuel Consumption

Current Year Previous Year
2015-16 2014-15
(In Rs.) (In Rs.)

1. Electricity

(a) Purchased (Units) 880976 729801
Total Amount (Rs.) 7327260 5587483
Rate /Unit 8.32 7.66

(b) Own Generation through Diesel Generator
Units (Litres) 7574 23965
Units per litre of diesel Oil 2.24 2.06
Total Units of Power 16973 49427
Total Amount (Rs.) 364014 1405246
Cost per Unit 21.45 28.43

2. Furnace Oil - -
Quantity (k. Litre) - -
Total Amount (Rs.) - -
Average Rate Per Litre - -
Wood
Quantity (M. Tons) 477 390
Total Amount (Rs.) 1504503 1560531
Average Rate per Ton 3154 4000

B. Consumption Per Unit Of Production

Decorative Laminated Sheets (No.) Total Prodn. 699633 623015
Electricity (Unit/ Unit of Prodn.) 1.28 1.25
Furnace Oil (Ltr./ Unit of Prodn.) - -
Wood (Kgs. / Unit Of Prodn.) 0.68 0.63



For Margherita Unit:

A. Power and Fuel Consumption

1. Electricity

(a) Purchased (Units)
Total Amount (Rs.)
Rate /Unit

(b) Own Generation through Diesel Generator

Units (Litres)

Units per litre of diesel O1l
Total Units of Power
Total Amount (Rs.)

Cost per Unit

2. Furnace O1l
Quantity (k. Litre)
Total Amount (Rs.)
Average Rate Per Litre

Wood

Quantity (M. Tons)
Total Amount (Rs.)
Average Rate per Ton

Consumption Per Unit Of Production
Total Production (N.A.)

Electricity (Unit/ Unit of Prodn.)
Furnace Oil (Ltr./ Unit of Prodn.)
Wood (Kgs. / Unit Of Prodn.)

22

Current Year
2015-16
(In Rs.)

333917
3228077
9.67

10590
4.17
44126
519994
11.78

297.39
689862
2320

273271
17.97

14.13

Previous Year
2014-15
(In Rs.)

136590
1297954
9.50

2849.64
4.06
11563
151000
13.06

133.43
316938
2375

133408
14.31
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FORM NO. MGT 8
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2016

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

¥

e
ek e P - -

. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: -
1 ]CIN o - 120211AS1973PLC001856

—1 e - e LT o T

Registration Date 11-12-1973

NATIONAL PLYWOOD INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Catega:y: Company jimited by Shares
SubaCat_eEﬁ: Indian Non-Government Company

Address: P.O. - Makum Pather - 786187, Margherita, Dist.: Tinsukia, Assam;
Email; info.npil. ho@nationalplywood.net; Phone: 033-22480116

6 [Whether listed com-ﬁgrﬁ Yes - Listed in BSE & CSE

7 IName. Address & contact details of the Registrar & Transfer |Maheshwari Datamatics Pwvt. Ltd.,
Agent, if any. Address:- 6,Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor, Kolkata - 700 001 ; Phone Number:- 2243-
5029/2248-2248, Email:- mdpldc @yahoo.com

Il PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY o B - ]

(All the business activities cortributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

2
3 [Name of the Compény
4 rCategf::ury/Sul:}-r;att—:-gory of the Company

5 |Address of the Registered office & contact details

S No.| Name and Description of main pf'oducts / services NIC Code of the % to total tumover of
Product/service the company
R ] PLYWOOD o 1621 47.82% |
, LAMINATE 1621 38.71% ]
3| SWAN TIMBER 1621 21.75%
. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES _
SN | Name and address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary/ | % of | Applicable
Associate shares Section
I held
N NORE_ — —

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN
(i) Category-wise Share Holding

(Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year | No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
[As on 31-March-2019} [As on 31-March-2016] during the
| Demat | Physical | Total | %ofTotal | Demat | Physical | Total | %ofTotal| year
| L Shares | _ | Shares
A. Promoters
1} Indian !
a) individual/ HUF | 21.97.790 L 171670 | 2369460 F__EOEB%F 2197790 | 442410 2640200 [ 45.10%| 11.43%
b) Central Gowt - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
c) State Gov(s) ' : - - - 0.00%|  0.00%
d) Bodies Corp. 1,600 | 157,890 | 1,59,490 1,01,050 158,390 |  271%| -0.69%
e) Banks / FI 0.00% 0.00%
\ Any other - - - 0.00% - - : 0.00%|  0.00%]
Sub Total (A) (1) 21,99.390 | 3,29.560 | 25,28,950 4320%| 2298840 | 4,99750| 27.98590 | 47.81%]| 10.66%
] 1 I | -




(2) Foreign

a) NRI individuals I Lr " 0.00% : 0.00%

b) Other Jndividuals R 0.00% - 0.00%

c) Bodies Corp. - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.60%

d) Any other o - 0.00% B : 0.00%) 9_51%

Sub Total (A) (2) : 0.00% : 0.00%|  0.00%
TOTAL (A) 21,99,390 : 320560 | 2528950 | 43.20%| 2298840 | 499,750 27.98,590 | 47.81%| 10.66%

B. Public Shareholding | T '

1. fﬂSﬁtUﬁOﬂSJ | o

a) Mutual Funds - 0.00%| 0.00%| 0.00%

b) Banks / Fi 207,260 2.07.,260 | 354%|  2,07.260 : 207,260 | 354%| 0.00%

) Central Govt B ] T" ) ' 000%| | 0.00%|  0.00%

d) State Gowt(s) 0.00% - - 0.00% 0.00%

e) Venture Capital Funds ) | 0.00% - ] - 0.00%|  0.00%

‘f) Insurance Compm ] 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%

q) Flls | ] - 0.00%]| : 0.00%|  0.00%

# h) Foreign Venture Capital - 0.00% . -

[Funds _

) Others (specify) l_ - - |

Sub-total (B)(1):- 2,07,260 2,07.260 2,07,260 2,07.260

2. Non-institutions ., | )

a) Bodies Corp. 709504| 17,050 | 7.26,554 |  12.41%- 0.00%| -100.00%

) Indian | ] 0.00%

1) Overseas ) 0.00% ] 0.00%

b) Individuals | -

) Individual shareholders * 5.48,466 | 16,22,746 | 27 72%| 565,066 | 11,11,030 | 16,76,096 28.63%| 3.29%

holding nominal share

capital upto Rs. 1 lakh

i) Individual shareholders 306,000 | I 767240  1311%| 306,000 | 140050 | 446,050 | 7.62%]| 41.86%

holding nominai share | _

capital in excess of Rs 1 |

llakh I

¢) Others (specify) 7,05,904 17,050 | 7,22,954

Non Resident Indians [ 1,000 | fl—_FJ—-ﬁz% 1,000 1,000 0.02%|  0.00%

[Overseas Corporate Bodies I - o] 0.00% B 0.00%

Foreign Nationals —I 00—5‘?;[—— -] 0.00%

+lee,u::aring Members -l | | 0+00%! 1,800 1,800 0*00%.

Trusts 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Foreign Bodies DR | | - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%

Sub-total (B){2):- 1564970 | 17,050 | 31,17,540 53.26%| 1579770 | 12,68,130 | 2847900 | 48.65%| -8.65%

Total Public (B) | 1772230  17.050 [ 33,24,800 56.80%| 17.87.030 | 12.68,130 | 30,55 160 52.19%

C. Shares held by o | 0.00%| 0.00% 0.00%

Custodian for GDRs &

ADRs _ | | | | _

Grand Total (A+B+C) 3971620 | 346610 | 5853750 [  100.00%| 4085870 ] 17,67,38—0'1—55,53,750 100.00%|  2.55%

(i) Shareholding of Promoter

" - L

(Equity Share Capital)

SN Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year | Shareholding at the end of the year | % change
No.of | %oftotal | % of Shares %oftotal | % of n-

Shares |Shares of the{ Pledged/ Shares of | Shares |Sharehold

company | encumbered the company| Pledged/ | N9 duning
to total shares encumbere| the year |

d to total
i - _ _ shares

1 |Smt. Chandra Kanta Periwal 5,64,650 965% 5,64,650 0.00%

2 |Smt. Madhulika Periwai 3,43,240 586%| | 343240 5.86% 0.00%

3 |Smt Madhulika Periwal 23,300 0.40% 23300]  0.40% 0.00%

4 |Sri Piyush Periwa 2,70,525| 4.62% 2,70,525 4.62% : 0.00%

5 |Sri Piyush Periwa 52,050 0.89% 52,050  0.89% 0.00%

} t - 1 t

5 [Miss Malvika Periwa 17250 17250 0.29% 0.00%

7 [Smt Sheela Periwa 2,13,000] 213,000  3.64% 0.00%

8 |Smt Sheela Periwa ) | 1,500 0.03% 0.00%




g |Sri Abhyuday Periwal 1,92,100 1,92,100 ~3.28% - 0.00%
Sri Abhyuday Periwal - 1,750 1,750 0.03% 0.00%
Shri Ajay Kumar Periwal i 1,78,350 1,78,350 3.05% 0.00%
Smt. Neelam Periwal - 1,46,750 1,46,750 2.51% 0.00%
13 'Shri Anant Periwal 5,000 5,000 0.09%
[ 14 |Sri Vijay Kumar Periwal ) 178,925 178,925 3.06%
15 |St Viiay Kumar Periwal 64,500 64,500
16 |Sri Vijay Kumar Periwal i 7,500 7,500
17 |SrMayank Periwal T 16,000 16,000 : 0.00%
18 |Piyush Periwal - HUF ~ 1,000 1,000 0.02% 0.00%
19 |Reliable Wood Industries Ltd. 39,620 39.620 0.68% 0.00%
20 |Platinum Plywood Pvt. Ltd o 28,930 0.49%] 28,930 0.49% 0.00%
21 |Platinum Plywood Pvt. Ltd. ) 1600  0.03% 1600  0.03%]| 0.00%
22 |Narottam Investments & Trading Co. Ltd. 09,450 170%| 99,450 170% 0.00%
23 |Narottam Investments & Trading Co. Ltd. 15010  0.26%| - | 15010 0.26%| 0.00%)|
24 |National Couriers Pvt Ltd. 125000 021%| - | 125000  021% 0.00%]

(iif) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

SN

Particulars Date

No. of shares

Reason I Shareholding at the beginning of the year

% of total

shares

[Atthe b;ginning of the yeér

.Changes-aur}ng the year '

!

year

No change during the year

]

1At the end of the year

—

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRS).

No change during the year

“No change during the year

Cumulative Shareholding duning the

No. of shares % of total
shares |

(Equity shares) ) o
SN | For each of the Top 10 Date Reason | Shareholding at the beginning of the year | Cumulative Shareholding during the l
shareholders year
No. of shares | % of total ' No. of shares % of total
shares shares
|1 |Fioreat India Limited [ - |
At the beginning of the year 20,000 0.34% 20,000]  0.34%
LCha‘ngies during the year o * 0.00% - 0.00%
Atthe end of the year 20000]  0.34% 20,000  0.34%
2 |Gradation Enterprises Ltd. ) i ) __ 1 |
At the_E;ginning of the year 7,600 0.13% 7,600 0.13%
Changes during the year B 0.00% 0.00%
| At the end of the year i - 7600  0.13% 76000  0.13%
3 |ICICI Bank Ltd. | ] _
At the beginning of the year - 2,07,260 3.54% 207,260  3.54%
Changes during the year * . 0.00% 0.00%
At the end of the year | 207,260 3.54% 207,260]  3.54%
* 4 [Mahendra Girdharilal -
[ At the beginning of the year 3.06,000 5.23% 306000  5.23%]
| TChanges during the year - 0.00% - 0.00%
r [ At the end of the year 3,06,000 5.23% 3,06,000]  5.23%]




S

5 |Kanoi Leasfin Ltd S ——
|At the ¢ begmnlng of the year ' , 0.26%
| 1 Changes dunng the year -
At the end of the year

5 |RDB Erer@nments P | '
[At the béginni-ﬁg of the yéar - ) 0.13%
4Changes during the year - 0.00%
# [At the end of the year , 0.13%
| lAmrex Marketmg Pviltd --:_' ;; -
At the begmmng of the year 598,740 10.23% 10.23%
| Changes during the year - 0.00% - 0.00%
[A: the end of the year * 508740  10.23% " 598740] 10.23%]

- . — - —
8 |Sheth international Pvt Ltd [ - T |
(At the beginning of the year | L-__ 21,400 037%| 21,400 0.37%
ﬂChanges during the year ] T T - 0.00% T - 0.00%
At the end of the year ‘ ! 1 T 21,400 T 21,400
i — i : - i N W

(V) Sharehoidmg of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN Shareholding of each Directors Date Reason Shgreholding-at the begir-wﬁing of the year [ Cumulative Sha@holding during the
and each Key Managenal year

M“ I

1 | Sri Piyush Periwal

i . f’

5.51% 3225751  551%
0.00% I 0.00%
322 575 5.51% 322575]  5.51%

]At the beéinning of the year

Changes during the year

i | —
Personnel No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of fotal
shares | shares
3,22,575

[ At the end of the year

‘ yi jSI’I Nani Gopal Paul
At the beglnnlng of the year

| :
Changes dunng thr:-: year

At the end of the year

At the beginning of thelyear

Changes during the y-ear

At the end of the-year

Malvika Periwal ... . e T e e

Changes during the year - - 0.00%
17250  0.29%

At the beginning of the year

At the end of the year

5 'Abhijit Sarkar

2001 0.00% 00| 00

i [At the bgginning of the year
tChanges during the year T 0.00’“’/««I - | 0.00%
- — - + s o - - - s —
'At the end of the year 200 0.00% 200f  0.00%




At the beginning of the year
S SR A
Changes during the year

At the beginning of the year

'Changes dunng the year
[At the end of the year

| — -

|V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

(Amt. Rs./Lacs)
Particulars B mecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year - NiL
) Principal Amount 56,07,565.00 N : : 56,07,565.00
i) Interest due but not paid : :
'iii) Interest accrued but-not due ! _ - _=
Total e B 56,07,565.00 N )
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year | |
Addiion - 27257500

Mo
—
Mo
O
olle
o
S

[Net Change - 72,919, - 2,72,919.00

Indebtedness at the end of the financia! year
) Principal Amount 58,80,484.00 58,80,484.00

1) Interest due but not [;aid o : —
1) Interest accrued but not due - _
Total (wivi) 588048400] - 58,80,484.00

_VI. REMUNERATION OF _I?_!_I_?_ECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SN Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager
' - Amount

I Name|PIYUSH PERIWAL (Rs/Lac)

) o DesignationjManaging Director |
1 |Gross salary - - |9.00Lacs
| (a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, ---
1961

l(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 _—-

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961
|2 |Stock Option - | l L
: |
l 3 . =-

Sweat Equity
Commission -
4 - as % of profit . ] _

- others, specify

e FEE— - .

2]




Others, please specify

Total (A) - - |9.00Lacs
3 Celling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to Executive Directors _ - _ |
' Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total

SN.

5 II
l§

Name|NANI GOPAL PAUL
Managing Director

(Rs/Lac)

Designation

1 |Gross sala@ 3.12 Lacs

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act.'
1961 '

(b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 -

2 | Stock Option - ] | - ]
' 3 [Sweat Equity - ' -
| Commission o I
4 - as % of profit - B )
| - others, specity T
3 |Others, please specify
. —_— - — |
| Total (A) - - 1 3.12 Lacs
| - Ceiling as per the Act '

|C. Remuneration to other Directors - NONE _

| I N N

:D. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD - NONE

IVII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: -

| Type Sectionof |  Brief Description Details of Penaity/ | Authority [RD/NCLT/ | Appeal made, if any
the Punishment/ COURT] (give Details)
Companies Compounding fees
Act imposed
'A. COMPANY '
Penalty NA NIL NL NIL NIL
Punishment NA NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NA NIL NIL NIL NIL
B. DIRECTORS |
oty T % [ w W T w T w
Punishment -I:J-A NIL NIL NiL
Compounding N | N NIL NIL NIL

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Compounding NA NIL NIL NIL NIL

2%




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF NATIONAL PLYWOOD INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Repo'rt on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of National Plywood
Industries Limited (“the COmpany”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31“ March, 2016,
the Statement of Profit and: Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a

summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Res’pbnsibility for theStandalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Dlrectors 1S responsrble for the matters stated in Sectlon 134(5) of the
Companres Act, 2013 (“the Act”) w1th respect to the preparatron of these standalone ﬁnanc1al
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts)h Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguardmg the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selectlon

and application of approprlate accountmg policies; making Judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operatmg effectlvely for ensurmg the accuracy and completeness of

the accountmg records relevant to the preparation and presentation of the ﬁnancral statements

that give a true and fair view and are free from materral mrsstatement whether due to fraud or

error.
‘Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility 1S to express an opinion on these Standalone Financial statements based on our
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditingh
standards and'matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the prowsmns

of the Act and the Rules made there under




We conducted our audit in accordanee with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are

free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing '-pr_o‘cedures. to obtain audit evidence about the ameun’gs and the
disciosures 'i_n the ﬁhancial statements. The pfocedure-s .seiected depend on the auditor’s

judgment,ineiuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial .
statements, whether due to fraﬁd' or errer. In making those risk asksessments,l the auditor considers

‘internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstancee, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in
place an adequate internal financial controls system over ﬁnaneial' reporting and the -operating
effecti_veness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the aceeunting estimates made by the

Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of 0u:f iﬁfonnatidn and according .to the explanations given to us,
‘the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required .by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 3 1 March, 2016, and its

profit/loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.




Report on Other Legal and Regnllato'ry Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the ihforma_tion and e)'cplanation's which to the best df our

~ knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company

so far as 1t appears from our examination of those books

(¢) The accounts of the branch offices of the Company have been audited by us under

Section143 (8) of the Act and have been properly dealt with by us in preparing this report.

(d) The Balance Sheet, 'the 'Sta_tement of Profit and Loss,*'and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account and with the accounts of _

' the branches

(¢) In our I'opinion, the aféresaidstandalorie ﬁnancial staterhénts -comply with the Accouﬁting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. | | |

(f)  On the basis of the written representations received from_ the directors as on 31% March,
2016, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on

31% March, 2016 fr(jm being éppbinted as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(h) -~ With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 0pinion1a.nd to the best

of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its

financial position

11. The Company‘di'd not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts

for which there were any material foreseeable losses.




il There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company

For JHUNJHUNWALA and Co.
'Charfered Aééountants |
- SR FRN: 302169 .
6, Cdmmercial Buil_ding - | _ ' . ._ N L
23 Netaji Subhas Road, ‘K_ol_kata-_700001 L ' l . H'_m‘lﬁ
o I - CA R.KJHUNJHUNWALA

Proﬁrietor 1
Membership No. : 006604

Place: kolkata

Date: 30" May’2016




ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of the Our Report of even date to the members of -
National Plywood Industries L|m|ted on the accounts of the company for the year ended 31

March, 201(5_

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according'to the information and
explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that: |

1.

(a) The company has malntalned proper records showmg full partlculars including
quantltatlve detalls and situation of its fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the management

at reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and 'explanations given to us, No
fixed asset ‘has been disposed during the year and therefore does not af'fect the
going concern assumption

(a) As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified during the year by
the management at reasonable intervals.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are

reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its
business. |

(c) In our opinion and on the basis of our examination of the records the Company is

generally maintaining proper records of its inventories. No material discrepancy was
noticed on ph_ys_lcal verification of stocks by the management as compared to book

records.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties listed in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Consequently, clauses 3(a) and 3(b) are

not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
is generally an adequate internal control procedure commensurate with the size of
the company and the nature of its business, for the purchase of inventories & fixed

assets and payment for expenses & for sale of goods. During the course of our audit,

no major instance of continuing failure to correct any weaknesses in the internal
controls has been noticed.

Based on the audit procedures applied by us and aocording to the information ana
explanations prowded by the management, the particulars of contracts or

arrangements referred to in section 189 of the Act have been entered in the register
required to be maintained under that section. '




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The Company has not -a_c(:epte'd any deposits from the public .

- As per information & explanations given by the management, the Company has an
internal audit system commensurate with its size and the nature of its business.

As per information & explanation given by the management, maintenance of cost
records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Companies Act,2013 and we are of the opinion that prima
facie the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

(a) According to the records of the company, undisputed statutory dues including

Provident Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees’ State

Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty,
cess to the extent applicable and any other statutory dues have genérally' been
regularly deposit.ed with the appropriate authorities. According to the information
and explanations given to us there were no outstanding statutory dues as on 31* of
March, 2016 for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.

(b) According to the in.fOrmat_ion and explanations given to us, there is an amount
payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, customs duty
and excise duty which have not been deposited on account of any disputes.

The Company does have accumulated loss and has incurred cash lass during the
financial year covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanations given by
the management, we are of the opinion that, the Company has not defaulted_ in
repayment of dues to a financial institution, bank or debenture holders. '

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares,
debentures and other securities. ' ' |

The Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi /mutual benefit fund/Society. Therefore,
the provision of this clause is not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Compan_y'is trading in
Shares, Mutual funds & other Investments. Proper. records & timely entries have
been maintained in this regard & further investments specified are held in their own
name. | |

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
given any guarantees for loan taken by others from a bank or financial institution.

Based on our audit procedures and on the information given by the management,
we report that the company has not raised any term loans during the year.




17/.

18.
~given to us by the management, we report that the Company has not made any

19.

20.

21.

Based on the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31* March, 2016, we report

‘that no funds raised on short- term basis have been used for long-term investment

by the Company

Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanatlons

preferentlal allotment of shares durmg the year.
The Company has no _outstanding debentures during the period under audit.

The Company has not raised any money by public issue during the year.

Based on the audit procedures performed and thé information and explanations

given to us, we report that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or

reported durlng the year, nor have we been mformed of such case by the
management.

For JHUNJHUNWALA and Co.

Chartered Accountants

6, Commercial Building

23 Netaji Sub'has Road, Kolkata-700001

Place: kolkata

Date: 30" May’2016 e~ -2¢q

FRN: 302169E

CA R K. JHUNJHUNWALA

Proprletor

Membership No. : 006604



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF NATIONAL PLYWOOD INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Stat_ements

We have aud1ted the accompanymg standalone ﬁnanc1al statements of Nat1onal Plywood
Industries lelted (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2016,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash.Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a

summary of the s1gn1ﬁcant accountlng pohc1es and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accountmg principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accountlng Standards specified under Sectlon 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. This responsrblhty ‘also includes malntenance of -
adequate accounting records in accordance with the prov1s1ons of the Act for safeguardmg the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 1rregular1t1es selection ‘
and apphcatlon of appropriate accountmg policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, im‘plementation and maintenance ‘of _ade(juate internal
financial control.s, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completene.ss of
the accounting r.eco-rds, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are t”ree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone Financial statements based on our
audit.We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and'matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions

of the Act and the Rules made there under.




We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are

free from matenal mlsstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The proeedures selected ,depe'nd on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in or.der.to design audit‘procedures' that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the pnrpose of expressing an,opinionvon whether the Company has in
place an adequate internal financial controls system 'over financial reporting and the operating
effectiveness of such controlsv. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policie's used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the

Company’s Directors, as well as evaluatin‘g the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit ev1dence we have obtained is sufﬁcrent and approprlate to prov1de a

basis for our audit. oprmon on the standalone ﬁnan01al statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information ‘and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accountmg principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 3 1St March, 2016, and its

profit/loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Re'quirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

()

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were neceSsary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as requrred by law have been kept by the Company ’

so far as it appears from our examination of those books

The accounts of the branch offices of the Company have been audited by us under

- Section143 (8) of the Act and ha_ve been properly dealt with by us in pr_eparing this report.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, -and the Cash Flow Statement deait

with by this Report are in agreernent with the books of account and with the accounts of

| the branches

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, ’

'On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March,

2016, taken on record by> the Board of Directors, none of the directors ie disqtlaliﬁed' as on

31% March, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

- With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

~ Rule 11 of the Companies (Audlt and Audltors) Rules, 2014, in our oplnlon and to the best

of our information and according to the explanatlons given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its

financial position

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts

for which there were any material foreseeable losses.




There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Educatlon and Protection Fund by the Company

6, Commercial Building

23 Netaji Subhas Road,:Kolkata-700001

Place: kolkata

Date: 30" May’2016

For JHUNJHUNWALA and Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 302169E

Lv B

CA R.KJHUNJHUNWALA
Proprietor

Membership No. : 006604




AANNEXURE TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT |

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 df the Our Report of even date to the members of
National Plywood I_ndustries Limited. on the accounts of the company for the year ended 31°*
March, 2016.

On the basrs of such checks as we considered approprlate and according to the mformatlon and
explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

1.

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars mcludmg
quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets.

- (b) As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the management

at reasonable intervals; no material diScrepanci_es were noticed on such verification.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fixed asset*has been disposed during the year and therefore does not affect the
going concern assumptlon

(a) As explarned to us, inventories have been physncally verlfled durlng the year by

the management at reasonable intervals.

(b) In our opinion and accordlng to the rnformation and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its
business. :

(c) In our opinion and on the basis of our examination of the recordS, the Company is
generally maintaining proper records of its inventories. No material discrepancy was
noticed on physical verification of stocks by the management as compared to book
records. :

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties listed in the register
‘maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Consequently, clauses 3(a) and 3(b) are
not applicable.

‘In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there

is generally an adequate internal control procedure commensurate with the size of
the company and the nature of its business, for the purchase of inventories & fixed
assets and payment for expenses & for sale of goods. During the course of our audit,
no major instance of continuing failure to correct any weaknesses in the internal
controls has been noticed. -

Based on the audit procedures applied by us and according to the information and
explanations provided by the management, the particulars of contracts or
arrangements referred to in section 189 of the Act have been entered in the register
required to be malntamed under that section.




17.Based on the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examlnatlon of the Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31* March, 2016, we report
that'no funds raised on short term ba5|s have been used for Iong term investment
by the Company.

18. Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given to us by the management, we report that the Company has not made any
preferential allotment of shares durlng the year.

19. The Company has no outstanding debentures during the period under audit.
20. The Company has no't raised any money by public issue during the year..
21. Based on the audit procedures performed and the mformat:on and explanations

given to us, we report that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or
rep_orted during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the

“management. _ ‘
ForJHUNJHUNWALA and Co.
Chértered Accountants
6, Commercial Building R | FRN: 302169E |
23 Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata-700001 | e F
| CA R.KJHUNJHUNWALA
Place: kolkata | ' Proprietor

Date: 30" May’2016

Membership No. : 006604




Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2016

M/s NATIONAL PLYWOOD INDUSTRIES LIMITED

( Amount in Rs)

Paribiifars Note | As at 31st Marbh As at 31st March |-
' . - 2016 . 2015
. . 1- 2 Hei g
l. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES :
{ "
| .
! 1|Shareholders’ funds ) .
’ |Share capital - 2 58,537,500 58,537,500
Reserves and surplus 3 -462,734,359 | = - -482,336,671
2|Non-current Liabilities o )
Long-term borrowings 4 142,271,089 - 137,290,739
Long term Provisions 5 77,366,959 | 77,045,059
3|Current liabilities )
Short-term borrowings . 6 5,880,484 5,842,545 |
Trade Payables 7 321,418,304 316,750,093 ¥
Other current liabilities 8 363,503,796 306,425,898 .
TOTAL 506,243,773 419,555,163 -
Il.  |ASSETS
1|Non-current assets
Fixed assets i
Intangible assets 9 . 67,410,000 67,410,000
Tangible assets ) 9 51,541,637 54,200,886
Capital Work in Progress 9. T -
Non-Current Investment _ 10° 105,000 105,000
Long-term loans and advances 11 37,845,174 25,386,016 1~
2|Current assets .
Inventories 12 99,249,153 97,145,559 |
Trade receivables - 13 241,726,030 160,749,727
Cash and cash equivalents 14 4,159,903 3,087,418
Short-term loans and advances 15 . 4,206,876 ) 11,470,557{
TOTAL 506,243,773 419,555,163
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Notes on Financial Statements 21t0 34
As per our report of even date Qm Botir= L/___,._—J
; e
For JHUNJHUNWALA & CO ,
Chartered Accountants S 5
Firm Reg no: 302169E :
Directors

CA. R KJHUNJHUNWALA
Proprietor

Viembership No. 006604
Place: Kolkata '
Date: 30th-May, 2016




'Mis NATIONAL PLYWOOD INDUSTRIES LIMITED

' Statement of Profit and Loss'-for the year-ended 31.03.2016 . '
’ g ' ( Amount in Rs)

{ Note | For the year ended | For the year ended
§ Particulars 31st March 2016 | 31st March 2015 |
I.|Revenue from operations - 16 527,715,903 387,853,666
II.|Other income 17 17,699,807 437,237,362
lll.|Total Revenue (I + II) 545,415,710 . 825,091,028
IV.[Expenses:
Cost of material Consumed 18 193,773,971 203,724,221
Purchase of Stock -in-trade 272,188,123 205,486,704
Changes in inventories of stock-in-Trade 19 -9,156,630 25379593
Cmployee benefits expense .20 28,933,441 | 27,686,216
Financial Expenses 21 747,919 699,855
Depreciation and Amortlsatlon Expenses -22 - 4,254,557 | 13,075,050 |
Other expenses 23 35,074,0_1 8 52,592,629 |.
Total expenses 525,813,398 - 518,644,268
V/|Profit before tax 19,602,312 b 306,446,760
VI|Tax expense:
(1) Current tax(No MAT as per SICK Company Act) - s
(2) Income Tax adjustment for earller year - =
ViI|Profit (Loss) .for the period (V - Vi) 19,602,312 306,446,760
Vill|Earnings per equity share: . :
(1) Basic 26 3:35 52.35
(2) Diluted 26 3.35 52.35
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Notes on Financial Statements 2t0 34 '
As per our report on even date QWM L__/,_____l o

For JHUNJHUNWALA & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg no: 302169E

u.u—w&

CA.RK JHUNJHUNWALA
Proprietor
Membership No. 006604

Place: Kélkata .
Date: 30th May, 2016

Directors




M/s NATIONAL PLYWOOD INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the fihancial statement

Note

Particulars

Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements
The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all matenal respects with the Aocountlng Standards specidied under

* section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (" the 203 Act ") read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. The financial

Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention except in cases of assets for which
provision for impairment is made and revaluation is carried out. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial

Statements are consistent with those of previous year.

Use of estimates : :
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period. . Although these estimates are based upon
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ‘could differ from these estlmates ' :

Fixed assets b . ¢
Fixed assets are stated at cost of acqwsmon inclusive of duties (net of CENVAT and other credits, wherever applicable), taxes, lncndental
expenses, erection / commissioning expenses and borrowing costs etc. up to the date the assets are ready for their intended use.:

Depreciation ’
Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Stra:ght Line method at the rates prescrlbed in Schedule Il of the Compames Act, 2013 or at.
rates determined based on the useful life of the assets, whichever is higher.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine if there is any indication of impairment thereof based
on external / internal factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its ‘recoverable
amount, which represents the greater of the net selling price of assets and their ‘value in use’. The estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value at appropriate rate arrived at after considering the prevailing interest rates and welghted average cost of
capital. i :

‘Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. All other
investments are classified as long-term. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual
investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost, but provision for diminution in value is made to recognise a decllne other

. than temporary in the value of such investments.

Inventories )
Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.The cost of finished goods and stock-in-process

. Comprises raw materials, direct labour,other direct cost- and related production ovsrheads - upto the relevant stage of

completaion,Puchased finished goods are valued at cost of Purchase,

Revenue recognmon
Revenue (income) is recognised when no’ sngnlf cant uncertaunty asto determination/ reallsatlon exists.

Interest
Revenue is recognized on a time proportion ba5|s takmg into account the amount outstandmg and the rate applicable.

Employee Benefit

Providend Fund -
Contribution towards providend fund for certain employee is made to the regulatory authorities authorities,Where the company has no
further obligation.




Gratuity :
~ The Company does not provrdes for gratuity,a defined benefit plan (the Gratuﬂy Plan) covering eligible employee in accordance with the
Payments of Gratuity Act,1972,which are admissible through Life-Insurance Corperation (LIC) and trust which is administered by the
trustee. .
Excise: Re Aqueous Solution Case
i) Refund claim of Rs 66. 29 lacs tranferred to Consumer Welfare Fund, Appeal filed is pending with CESTAT Kolkata.
ii) Refund claim of Rs 19.11 lacs sanctioned and paid but department has filed appeal before tribunal which has been remanded to the
department for de-novo examination of provisional assessment, and is pending.
iii) Refund claim of Rs 53.56 lacs pending in Appeal before Tribunal,Kolkata.
Total Contingent Refund is approx Rs.119.85 lacs. .

" Earnings per share
Earning per share is -calculated by dwrdmg the net. profit or Ioss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the welghted
average number of equity shares outstandlng during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnmg ‘per share, the net proﬁt or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of share outstanding durlng the period are adjusted for the effects of all diluted potential eqwty shares.

Taxation
Tax expense.comprises of current and deferred tax

Current income-tax are measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian lncome Tax
Act,1961. -

Deferred tax. is recognized on a prudent basis for timing differences, being difference between taxabie and accounting

income/expenditure that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or mote subsequent period(s). Deferred tax asset is

recognised -on carry forward of unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses only if there is virtual certainty that such asset can be realised

~ against future taxable income. Unrecognised deferred tax asset of earlier periods are re-assessed and recognised to the extent that it
-has become reasonably certain that future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

- MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evrdence that the Company will pay normal income
tax during the specified period. In the period in which the Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an
asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the
said asset is created by way of a credit to the profit and loss account and shown as MAT" Credit Entittement. The Company reviews the
same at each balance sheet date and writes ‘down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitiement to the extent there is no Ionger
convincing evidence. to the effect that Company will pay normal Income Tax during the specified penod '

a) Disputed Income for Rs 2,50,82,624/- for assessment year 1996-97 for which the appeal is perding at Kolkata High Court

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet compnse cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with an original matunty
of three months or less.

Contingent liabilities
- Liabilities which are material and whose future outcome cannot be -ascertained wuth reasonable certainty, are treated as contingent and

disclosed by way of notes to the accounts.

Central Excise :

i) Due to dispute in classification andfor valuation of certain items of ﬁnlshed goods under the Central Excise & Salt

Act, 1944, a demand of Rs 19.03 lacs(approx) has been confirmed by Central Excise Department. Department has

been requested to adjust the amount against refund claim pending with the department.
“ii) Demand on duty Rs 182.68 lacs approx. confirmed by the commissioner C.E. on 10.10.2001, against show

cause notice dated 12.12.1985. Appeal ’petitions filed in Guwahati Hiéh Court is pending,hence subjudice.

iii) Demand of duty Rs 20.65 lacs confirmed. "Appeal and stay petition filed before the Tribunal Kolkata, Stay petition has

been allowed.Appeal is pending.

Tatal Contingent liabilities on this account is approx Rs 250.49 lacs.

Provident Fund

Provident Fund Liabilities is being paid as per agreed stipulated term. Necessary applications were filed with

concerned authorities to walve penal mteres(s) penaltles damages & other charges on the hablhty of the company
_ason 31.03.2016. &




Sales Tax-Hosur, Tamilnadu: .
Demand of Rs 345.69 lacs is outstandmg agamst IFST Loan against which a stay has benn granted by the Madras )
High Court.

Sales Tax-West Bengal:

The Sales Tax department has ralsed several ex-parte demands pertaining to WBST & CST on the Company along
with interest and penalty for non submission of forms, way bills and old records from 1995-96 to 2005-06. The
Principal Amount demanded is Rs1284.72 lacs and Interest Rs 986.64 lacs. Demands for the year 1995-96 arid
1996-97 have been assessed and demands.for Rs 874.77 lacs has been set aside leaving-a total liability of Rs
1‘3'96.00 lacs against these demands which are pending before the Appellate & Revision Authorities. Even though
the company is hopeful for favourable order(s) in most of the cases, as per Hon'ble BIFR directions a contingent

’Iiability of Rs 1396.00 lacs is being taken on record.

In order to bring value to the company arid help the company to overcome the crisis pursuant to it becoming sick,

_ the promoter,Late Mr M.L.Periwal had.decided to sell the 'National' brand for Plywood & laminates and other allied
products to the company at a cost of Rs 674.10 lakhs arrived as per Independent report. This justifies the sacrifices
to be made by the promoter towards rehabilitation of the company through the Hon'ble BIF R. This sacrifice is part ‘
of the promoter contribution. The company proposes to issue share of the face value of Rs 10/- each at a premium of
Rs 5/- per share to acquire the brand at cost. This issues of shares against the value of brand goodwill shall be part

. of the scheme to be approved by the,Hon'ble BIFR pending which the amount shall be kept as current liability in the
company as Advance.against Brand. This will be distinguished from the other current liabilities and there will not be -
any compromise on this liablility aspart of the proposed scheme.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event.and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect-of which reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement
benefits) are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.




Notes.forming part of the financial statement

2 Share Capital .

a)

As at 31st March 2016

it Ca‘ ital ~As:at.31st March 2015
p Number " Amount (Rs) Number Amount (Rs)
Authorised : : _ ) )
Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 25,000,000 250,000,000 25,000,000 250,000,000
Preference Shares of Rs 10 each - - - ' -
Total 25,600,000 250,000,006 25,000,000 250,000,000
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 5,853,750 58,537,500 5,853,750 58,537,500
Preference Sha_resvof Rs 10 each - - - -
Total 5,853,750 58,537,500 5,853,750 58,537,500
l' #
b) The reconciliation of the Number of Shares Outstanding and the amounts of Share Capital:
Equity shares
Particulars : Equity:shares .
: Number Amount (Rs)
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 5,853,750 58,537,500
Shares Issued during the year N : -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 5,853,750 . 58,537,500
c) The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares ’
Equity shares | : . : . :
: : : As at 31st March 2016 As at 31st March 2015
Name of Sharehoider No. of Equity | % of Holding - | No. of Equity | = % of Holding
i " Shares held : : Shares held | .
Smt Chandrakanta Periwal 564650 9.65 564650 9.65
Madhulika Periwal - 343240 5.86 1343240 5.86
Piyush Kumar Periwal- 322575 5.18|" 322575| 5:18
Amrex Marketing Pvt Ltd 598740 10.23 598740 10.23
Mahendra G. Wadhwani 306000 5.23 306000 " 623
2,135,205 36.15 2,135,205 36.15
Preference Shares :
As at 31st March 2016 ‘As at 31st March 2015.
0, s . - i 2
Namia.of Sharsholder': - No. of % of Holding No. of Equity % of Holding
Preference - Shares held ;
Shares held
- 0.00 - 0.00




Reserve and Surplus

o As at 31st As at 31st March
) Reserves & Surplus March 2016 2015
“Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
General Reserve
Opening balance 85,000,000 85,000,000
Closing balance 85,000,000 85,000,000
Capital Reserve .
| Opening balance 30,755,905 _ 30,755,905
Add: Securities premium credited on share issue - ) -
_Closing balance ’ ' 30,755,905 30,755,905
Investment Allowance Reserve . :
Opening balance 867,830 867,830
Add:Additions during the year - .~
Closing balance - 867,830 867,830
Securities Premium Account i o
Opening balance 20,365,000 20,365,000 |-
Closing balance 20,365,000 20,365,000
Statutory Reserve
Capital Subsidy Account 1,500,000 1,500,000
Grant received 2,000,000 2,000,000
3,500,000 3,500,000
" Surplus
Opening balance (622.825,406) (929,272,166)
Add: Net Profit for the current year 19,602,312 306,446,760
(603,223,094)| (622,825,406)
Closing balance -603,223,094 -622,825,406
' Total -462,734,359 -482,336,671
'Long-termbBorrowings '
: As at 31st | As at 31st March
Long-term Borrowings March 2016 2015
_ : -~ Amount:(Rs) | = Amount (Rs)
(a) Unsecured
From Sundry parties © 104,511,794 99,631,444
Security Deposits : 3,163,546 3,163,546
Others- Sales tax deferred scheme 34,595,749 34,595,749
Total 142,271,089 137,290,739
Long-term Provisions
: - -As at 31st .| As at 31st March
Long-term Provisions March 2016 2015
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax A.Y.2006-Q7 - 188,100
Advance for Brand » 67,410,000 | 67,410,000
Advance toward Share Buy-Back From Banks/FI . 9,820,000 9,310,000
Unclaimed Dividends 1995-96 86,794 86,794
Share Application - Refund Account 50,165 50,165
Total 77,045,059

77,366,959




Short-term Borrowings

As at 31st March

As at 31st
Short-term Borrowings March 2016 2015

¥ Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
(a) Secured 1 C :
Working Capital Loans
From'Banks
Rupee Loans 5,880,484 5,607,565
Term Loan - : -
Interest Accruéd on Term loan - -
Temporary overdraft from banks - 234,980

Total 5,880,484 5,842,545

(a) Working Capltal is-secured by hypothecatlon of present and future stocks of raw materlals stock-in- -process, finished goods

stores & spare parts.books debts and other moveable assets and personal guarantees of some of the directors of the company.
b) Term loans are partly secured by pari-passu first charge on the fixed assets of the company & personal guarantees of some
of the directors of the company and partly by exclusive charge on the specific assets and personal guarantees of the directors.

7 Trade Payavbles

. As at 31st As at 31st March
Trade Payables March 2016 2015
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
(a) Due to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises . 321,418,304 316,750,093
Total 321,418,304 316,750,093
8 _Othe_r Current Liabilities .
) - ; As at 31st As at 31st March
Other Current Liabilities March 2016 2015
: s Amount (Rs) .| Amount (Rs)
(a) Payable for Expenses 5,737,918 10,603,651
(b) Other Payables . 334,136,365 280,530,746
(c) Advance From Customers 23,629,514 15,291,501
;l'etal 363,503,796 306,425,898

9 Fixed Assets‘

(Separately -annexed)
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Non-Current Investments

11

Particulars As at 31st - | As at 31st March
March 2016 2015
Amount.(Rs) Amount (Rs)
Investments (Refer below) _ '
Investment in Equity instruments 100,0C0 100,000
Others . 5,000 5,000
Total 105,000 * 105,000
Details of Non-Trade
Name of the Body Cbrporate No. of Shares / Units Amount (Rs)
) 2016 ‘2015 - 2016 2015
(1) (2) (3 . (4) (5)
a. Investment in Equity Instruments )
Unquoted, fully paid-Long Term Investments
Periwal Plastics Pvt Ltd of Rs . '
100 each 1,000 1,000 100,000 | 100,000
: Total E 100,000 100,000
b. Others
Assam Petro chemicals Ltd of : .o
Rs 10 each 500 500 5,000 5,000
5,000 5,000
Grand Total 105,000 105,000
[Aggegate amounts of Unquoted Investments’ 105,000 | 105,000 |
Long Term Loans and Advances
: L : As at31st | As at 31st March
Long Term Loans and Advances March 2016 - 2015
LR ~ Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
a. Others ]
Advance Payment of taxes (Net) 2,767,767 2,740,823
Advance to Others 26,994,827 17,306,076
b. L_oans 2,231,650 2,773,320
.c. Deposits
Sundry Deposits 5,850,930 . 2,565,797
37,845,174 25,386,016
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Inventories
Inventories As at 31 March 2016 " As at 31 March 2015
Quantity - Amount (Rs) . | - .Quantity Amount (Rs)
a.) Finished goods (Valued at . _
cost) : . 26,603,779 22,450,246
'b.) Work-in-progress = 3
¢.) Raw Materials 72,645,374 74,695,313
Total 99,249,153 97,145,559
13 Trade - Receivables
. LI : As at 31st As at 31st March
Trade - Receivables March 2016 2015
: , : e Amount (Rs) Amount(Rs)
Trade receivables outstanding for a period more than six months from the date they are : . o
due for payment .
Unsecured, considered good . _161 ,154,758 27,276,250
Unsecured,considered
Doubtful ’ - -
Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months from the date they ar'e
due for payment « 2 :
Unsecured, considered good 80,571,272 133,_4.73,477
Total 241,726,030 160,749,727
Cash and Cash Equivalenté
_ : As at31st | As at 31st March
Cash and cash equivalents March 2016 2015
' ' Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs) .
a. Cash in hand 531,594 1,188,491
b. Balances with banks 3,628,309 1,898,927
¢. Fixed Deposits with banks o -
14,159,903 3,087,418

(a) Fixed deposits with banks include maturity of more than 12 n'mnths '




Short Term Loans and Advances

As at 31st As at 31st:March
Short-term loans and advances March 2016 : 2015
v i : “‘Amount(Rs) ‘| Amount (Rs)
,a.. Advance to related Pér-ty . }
Advances to Related Party 25,000 508,540
b. Others : ]
Advance to Staff 3,449,206- 2,304,954
'Advance Against Property - .
Advance To Others ) y - »
Advance Payment qf taxes (Net) - -
Balance with Gov.Authorities 732,670 8,657,063
Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposits. R -
c. Deposits
Sundry Deposits - -
4,206,876 11,470,557
Revenue from Operations |
For the year .For the year
Bariculais. ended 31st ended 31st
rapeyan March 2016 March 2015
: Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Sale of Products
Gross Sale 552,109,034 407,722,656
Less: Excise Duty 24,393,131 - 19,868,990
Drawback on Export Sale - -
Total 527,715,903 | - ; 387,853,666
Other Income
R : .| Forthe year For the year
e G w | ended31st [  ended 31st
Otherlicome: == | March2016 | . March 2015
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Other Income » . 3,870]. : -
Liabilities/Creditors no longer payable W/Back 17,608,301 13,652,189
Profit on sale of fixed Assets ) Cos 11,117,202
WIOff from banks & Fl balances as per BIFR - 412,434,501
Interest received i 87,636 33,470
Total 117,699,807 437,237,362
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Cost of material Consumed

For the year

For the year

: ended 31st ended 31st
Cost of materla! Consumed March 2016 March 2015
} . Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Consumption of - ; ®
Raw Materials 193,773,971 203,724,221
Total 193,773,971 203,724,221

Changes in inventories of Stock-in-Trade

For the year

For the year

o - £ ' ended 31st ended 31st
Change.s in inventories of Stock-in-Trade March 2016 March 2015
. Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
‘Closing Stock of Finished/t‘raqing items 31,606,876 22,450,246
Less: Opening Stock of Finished/ trading items_ 22,450,246 47,829,839
Total 9,156,630 ~ (25,379,593)

Employee Benefits Expense

For the year

- For the year

: ST ' ended 31st ended 31st
Emp_loyee Benefits Expense March 2016 March 2015
- Amount (Rs) | Amount (Rs)
Salaries, bonus and leave pay . 26,785,264 25,860,913
Contribution to Providend Fund and Others Fund 1,903,275 | 1,659,463
Staff welfare expenses 244,902 165,840
Total 28,933,441 27,686,216
Financial Expense
For the year For the year
Finanélal Exonge ended 31st ended 31st
gttt - March 2016 | = March 2015
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Interest .
To Bank 747,919 699,855
747,919

Total

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

699,855

For the year

- For the year

i . d 31 1st
g Depreciatipn and Amortisation Expense ;r:::h 201s ; ;2(::: 23015 ;
: Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Depreciation and Amortisation - ' 4,254 557 3,075,050
Total 4,254,557 3,075,050
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Other Expenses

For the year

For the year

ended 3ist ended 31st
: Other Expanses March 2016 | - March 2015
. Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)

Manufacturing, Administrative & Selling Expenses . .
‘Store's and Spares Consumed 2,021,660 6,525,113
Packing & Forwarding Charges. 6,145,840 6,297,696
Repair to Plant & Machinery 1,380,056 1,430,405
Repair to Building 6,868 19,183
Repair to Others ' 67,451 177,575
Payments to Auditors ) 35,000 35,000
Power & Fuel ' 13,263,606 11,199,521
Service Tax on Freight 138,661 69,036
Miscellaneous Expenses 7,347,803 12,467,113
Vehicle Maintenance Expenses 285,207 414,181
Sundry Balance Advance W/off back 19,100 1,824,868
Rates & taxes 395,218 | 27,587
Insurance ) 272,768 305,225
Rent (Office & Godown) 1,667,278 1,876,446
Sampling Charges h 1,936,517 3,181,646
Sales Tax 90,985 326,449
Central Excise Duty Receivable W/off - 6,415,585

35,074,018 | 52,592,629

Total




24 Payment to auditor

~ Fortheyear .| Forthe year
: ' T ended 31st ended 31st
. Rayment fo auditor March 2016 | March 2015
~Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Statutory audit 35,000 35,000
Total ' - 35,000 35,000

25 Disclosures of related party transactions (as identified & certified by the management):

(i) As per Accounting Standard-18-

been complied with.

(i) Key Management
(a) Shri Piyush Periwal
(b) Shri Vijay Kumar Periwal
(c) Shri N.G.Paul
(d) Shri Abhijeet Sarkar

! Rellated PartyDisclosures' issued by tﬁe Institute ‘of Chartered Accountants of India héve

- Vice Chairman & Managing Directbr,

Director
Director
Director




26 Earning per share (EPS)

. For the. Year For the Year

Particulars Ended 31st Ended 31st

. March, 2016 March, 2015
Proﬁt after tax’ . Rs. 19,602,312 " 306,446,760
))/e\l:rlgvhted average number of equity shares outstandlng during the NoS. 5,853,750 5,853,750
Nominal value of equity per share Rs. 10 - 10
Basic earning per share (EPS) Rs. 3.35 5§2.35

27 To Make regular monthly Contribution to Varies: Providend Funds which are in the nature of defined Contnbutlon schemes and
such paid/payable amount are charged against revenue. To administer through duly constituted and approved independents
trusts.various gratuity and pension funds,which are in the nature of defined beneift/contribution schemes. To determine the
liabilities towards such schemes as applicable by an independent acturial valuations as per the requirements of Accountinig.

28 Mlcro, Small and Medium Einterprises d
There are Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding as at 31st March 2016.
This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

29 In the opinion of the Board ,of Directors, the Current-Assets, Loans & Advances are approximately of the value stated in
accounts, if realised in ordmary course of business, unless otherwise stated. The provision for all known ||ab|I|t|es is adequate
and not in excess/short of the amount considered reasonable/necessary.

30 Balances of some of the Sundry creditors, Loans and advances incorporated in the books as per balances appearing in the
relevant subsidiary records, are subject to confirmation from the respective parties and consequential adjustments arising from
recongciliation, if any. The management however is of the view that there will be no material discrepancies in this regard.

31 Historically, the compahys investment in unquoted shares has been done with a view to hold them for long term and thereby
earn capital gains, since dividend payout on such investments has generally been nil. The aforesaid policy has been taken into
consideration while computing the provision for lncome—tax as applicable

'32 The financial statements for the yedr ended 31st March, 2015 had been prepared as per the then applicable revised Companies
Act, 2013, Consequent to the notification under the Companies Act,2013, the financial statements for the year ended 31st
March, 2016 are also prepared under revised Scheduie . Accordingly, the previous year figures have also been reclassified to
conform to this vear's natifications. '

33 Figures in the bracket relate io previous year.

34 Figures have been rounded off to nearest rupee.

As per our report of even date attached

For JHUNJHUNWALA & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg no: 302169E

D\;R.H—)'#

CA. R K JHUNJHUNWALA
Proprietor )
Membership No. 006604

Directors

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30th-May, 2016




NATIONVAL PLYWOOD INDUSTRIES LIMITED

"|cASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

3

For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES )

Net Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 19,602,312 306,446,760

Adjustments for : ;

'Depreciation 4,254,557 3,075,050
Loss /(Profit) on sale of Fixed Assets - ‘
Interest. 747,919 699,855
Interest written back for earlier year - = )

Operating Profit before Workmg Capital changes 24,604,788 310,221,665

" Adjustments for : . ) .
Trade and Other Recelvables (80,976,303) (33,615,770)
Inventories (2,103,594) 31,550,845
Trade payables 51,216,717 53,245,915
Investments ) - ! . -
Term Loan - 529,688
Working Capital Loan from bank - -

OTS Settlement ' - -
Preliminary Expenses - -

Cash generated from operations (7,258,392) 361,932,343
Income Tax refund - - '
Income Tax paid - -

Wealth Tax paid - .- .

Net Cash Flow from Operating Actlwtles(A) (7,258,392) 361,932,343 | -

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividend income _ ' - . -
Purchase of Fixed Assets (1,595,308) (312,643,506)

Sale of Fixed Assets -

Sale of Share - -

" Net Cash Flow from Investing ActivIties(B) (1,595,308) (312,643,506)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Grant Received }

‘Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 4,980,350 9,350,145
Decrease /Increase in Financial Legse Liability 5,693,754 (57,440,225)
Interest Paid ) (747,919) (699,855)

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities© 9,926,185 (48,789,935)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash equlvaIents(A+B+C) 1,072,485 498,902

" Cash and Cash equivalents as on 01.04.2015 3,087,418 2,588,516

Cash and Cash equivalents as-on 31.03. 2016 4,159,903 3,087,418

Kolkata

.‘I,mfém VL——':::‘_

Dated: 30.05. 2016 ; ¢ _ ' _ Directors

AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE . : '

We have examined the above Cash Flow Statement of NATIONAL PLYWOOD INDUSTRIES LIMITED for the
year ended 31st March,2016. The Statement has been prepared by the Company in accordance with the
requirements of Clause 32 of listing agreement with Stock Exchanges and is based on and in agreement

with the books and records. of the Company and also the Statement of Profit and Loss Account and Balance Sheet
covered by our report of even date to the members of the Company . . '

For JHUNJHUNWALA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 302169E

Ve H——eeeke
RK Jhunjhunwala
"Proprietor

(Membership No.006604)

Kolkata )
Dated : 30.05.2016




